Fibromyalgia

Guidance for Health Professionals

FIBROMYALGIA ASSOCIATION UK

Registered Charity No. 1042582

(Booklet currently being reviewed at present, New version will be issued in the near future)



Fibromyalgia Action UK Studio 3007, Mile End Mill

12 Seedhill Road, Paisley PA1 1JS

National Helpline: 0300 999 3333 (10am - 4pm weekdays)

Benefits Helpline: **0300 999 0055** (10am - 12pm Monday & Friday)

Email: charity@fmauk.org
www.fmauk.org

Contents

Contents	1
Introduction	1
Diagnosis	2
Pathogenesis	4
Evidence-based interventions for fibromyalgia	8
Pharmacological management	10
Non-pharmacologio management	al 11
Body conditioning and exercise management	12
Activity Scheduling	14
Adolescents and young people	16
Alternative Therapies	16

Written by the Medical Advisory Board of the Fibromyalgia Association UK.
Registered Charity Number: 1042582
Capyrighted © 2014 Fibromyalgia Association U

Introduction

Fibromyalgia is a painful, non-articular condition with pain felt predominantly in the muscles. It is the most common cause of chronic, widespread musculoskeletal pain. It is typically associated with increased tenderness, persistent fatigue, non-refreshing sleep and generalised stiffness (Table 1).1

Fibromyalgia affects between 2.9% and 4.7% of the UK population² with females outnumbering males in a ratio of 7:1. The most common age group affected is between 45–60, though it can occur at any age, even in children. There is no distinction between ethnic or social groups. Fibromyalgia can also co-exist with other distinct clinical disorders.³

Evidence suggests that fibromyalgia is a chronic non-progressive, irreversible condition that is not life threatening, with the waxing and waning of symptoms being a typical feature. Fibromyalgia ranges from mild symptomatology, requiring no medical attention, to severe, with disabling widespread pain and exhaustion. The progression from mild to severe symptoms is not well understood. Heritable as well as environmental factors. may contribute to family aggregation of fibromyalgia. The onset of fibromyalgia can be sudden or gradual, traumatic or non-traumatic. The trigger factors involved can include mechanical or physical trauma or injury, and psychosocial stressors related to genetic factors providing a potential inherited risk factor.

Prognosis can depend on treatment availability and approach, and the individual's willingness to adopt a self-management outlook. In 2008, the European League against Rheumatism (EULAR) demonstrated that an interdisciplinary approach exploring concepts of:

- Medication utilisation
- Activity scheduling
- Graded exercise
- Cognitive behavioural therapy (CBT)

to be the optimal intervention for individuals with fibromyalgia.4

Diagnosis

Fibromyalgia is not simply a diagnosis of exclusion, it is a distinctive condition, which can be diagnosed with clinical precision. The diagnostic criteria are based on the American College of Rheumatology definition produced in 1990⁵ (see Table 2). These criteria are widely accepted in the UK and there is growing recognition of fibromyalgia as a distinct subgroup of chronic pain sufferers. 6

On assessment it is important to take a careful history and to acknowledge the individual's experience and description of pain. Patients with fibromyalgia do not look ill and do not appear clinically weak.⁷ Apart from restriction of movement due to pain and the presence of the multiple tender points, physical examination tends to be unremarkable. Blood tests, x-rays and scans will typically yield a negative result.

Before any intervention is considered, other pathological processes that can cause chronic pain and/or fatigue need to be excluded. Waddell et al, in 1992, first used the descriptive term "red flags", in the context of back pain, as indicators of potentially serious pathology.⁸



For fibromyalgia, "red flags" indicating other potential pathology could include:

- Involvement of the joints
- Systemic malaise, especially with weight loss
- Evidence of thyroid dysfunction

New presenting symptoms will need to be considered and possibly investigated as they arise. Appropriate referral onto other healthcare professionals will need to be determined at this stage (e.g. a Rheumatologist).

Pathogenesis

The precise pathology of fibromyalgia remains unknown at present. However, current research indicates increasing evidence for the following mechanisms:

Pain Amplification 9-12

Research clearly indicates the presence of peripheral and central sensitisation of the nervous system in fibromyalgia patients. Patients demonstrate classic signs of hyperalgesia and allodynia in response to thermal, noxious and touch stimuli. Measurements of neurotransmitter levels in the cerebrospinal fluid (CSF) have found a threefold increase in substance P together with a fourfold increase in nerve growth factor. These increases, together with continuous peripheral pain stimulation augmenting the levels of glutamate, activate the N-methyl-D-aspartate (NMDA) receptors leading to central sensitisation. The influence of the descending inhibition pathway from the brain is severely diminished by decreased levels of serotonin and noradrenaline, further augmenting the state of pain amplification.

Sleep Abnormalities 13

Disturbing normal sleep patterns in healthy individuals can induce symptoms of fibromyalgia such as muscular pain, increased tenderness



and fatigue. An intrusion of alpha waves into stage 4 delta sleep has been demonstrated in patients with fibromyalgia using electroencephalograms. Although this finding is not unique to fibromyalgia it is believed to be responsible for the non-refreshing sleep symptoms and low levels of insulin growth factor-1 observed. A total of 80% of growth hormone is released during stage 4 delta sleep and a persistent lack of growth hormone can lead to an accumulation of biochemical and mechanical faults in the muscles and tissues of the body. There is a bidirectional link between lack of sleep and symptoms of pain and fatique as well as a higher comorbidity of sleep apnoea and restless leg syndrome in patients with fibromyalgia.

Hormone Disruption 13,14

Multiple hormonal disturbances have been observed in fibromyalgia. Studies show a disruption in the hypothalamus-pituitary-adrenal axis with elevated levels of corticotropin releasing hormone (CRH) and adrenal cortical-stimulating hormone in conjunction with low 24-hour urinary cortisol levels. Elevated levels of CRH lead

Sympton List and Differential Diagnosis

Main Symptoms

- Widespread muscular pain
- Generalised stiffness
- · Persistant fatigue
- Non-refreshing sleep

Main Sign

Specific tender points

Commonly Associated Symptoms

- Irritable bowel syndrome
- Cognitive dysfunction
- Exercise intolerance
- Anxiety and reactive depression

Other Associated Symptoms

- Numbness & tingling
- · Cold and heat sensitivity
- Headaches
- TMJ dysfunction
- Raynaud's phenomenon
- Restless legs
- Dysmenorrhoea
- Irritable bladder

Differential Diagnosis

This may include:

- Polymyalgia rheumatica
- Regional myofascial pain
- Hypothyroid
- MF
- Systemic lupus
- Lymes disease
- Osteoarthritis
- Connective tissue disease

Table 1 (citation to reference 1)



to increased levels of somatostatin, which operates to reduce levels of thyroid hormone, growth hormone and oestrogen as well as increasing levels of prolactin. All of these imbalances have been observed to some extent in fibromyalgia patients.

Dysautonomia 15

Current findings suggest that patients with FM might be predisposed to having a dysfunctional response to physical and emotional stress. The dysautonomia in patients with FM involves an increased sympathetic and decreased parasympathetic activity of the autonomic nervous system. The outcome is a persistently hyperactive sympathetic nervous system that exhibits a blunted response to stressors. The dysautonomia may be associated with the prevalence of symptoms such as morning stiffness, sleep disturbances, Raynaud's phenomenon, intestinal irritability, generalized anxiety and depression. The augmented sympathetic activity appears to be greater in women than men, suggesting that women with FM may have more severe autonomic dysfunction.

Muscle Pathology 16

Muscle biopsy studies have revealed the presence of "moth eaten", ragged red fibres, type 2 fibre atrophy and decreased levels of ATP and phosphocreatine, indicating mitochondrial abnormalities and insufficient blood supply to the muscles. There is no sign of degeneration, regeneration or inflammation. Despite these observations being in unison with other chronic neuromuscular conditions and not specific to fibromyalgia, they do indicate that the muscles are involved in the overall pathogenesis. The disturbed regulation of the microcirculation and a change in the muscle metabolism might sensitise the intramuscular nociceptors. Also, the mitochondrial abnormalities may indicate a low oxidative capacity and therefore a reduced ability for endurance work. However, the pain cannot be sufficiently explained if a state of central sensitisation does not exist.



The American College of Rheumatology 1990 Criteria for the Classification of Fibromyalgia⁵

History of widespread pain

Definition: pain is considered widespread when all of the following are present: pain in the left side of the body, pain in the right side of the body, pain above the waist and pain below the waist. In addition, axial skeletal pain (cervical spine or anterior chest or thoracic spine or low back) must be present. In this definition, shoulder and buttock pain is considered as pain for each involved side. "Low back" pain is considered lower segment pain.

Pain in 11 of 18 tender points sites on digital palpation

Definition: pain, on digital palpation, must be present in at least 11 of the following 18 tender points sites:



- 1. insertion of nuchal muscles into occiput;
- 2. upper border of trapezius mid-portion;
- 3. muscle attachments to upper medial border of scapula;
- 4. anterior aspects of the C5, C7 intertransverse spaces;
- 5. 2nd rib space about 3 cm lateral to the sternal border;
- 6. muscle attachments to lateral epicondyle;
- 7. upper outer quadrant of gluteal muscles;
- 8. muscle attachments just posterior to greater trochanter;
- 9. medial fat pad of knee proximal to joint line.

Digital palpation should be performed with an approximate force of 4 kg, as measured with a dolorimeter. For a tender point to be considered "positive" the subject must state that the palpation was painful. "Tender" is not to be considered "painful".

For classification purposes, patients will be said to have fibromyalgia if both criteria are satisfied. Widespread pain must have been present for at least 3 months. The presence of a second clinical disorder does not exclude the diagnosis of fibromyalgia.

Table 2



Evidence based interventions for fibromyalgia

The European League against Rheumatism and American Pain Society published guidelines on the management of fibromyalgia and during 2014 EULAR will be reviewing their guidelines. We will feature this updated information in our next review of this booklet as well as the recent updated guidelines from APS.

Eular's Nine Recommendation Points For The Management Of Fibromyalgia⁴

In February 2005, a group of experts from throughout Europe met in Zurich to discuss recommendations for the management of fibromyalgia. The team was headed by Dr Ernest Choy and Dr Serena Carville from King's College, London on behalf of the European League Against Rheumatism (EULAR). The aim was to analyse the data from current scientific research studies published about fibromyalgia and to determine the most effective treatments that doctors can use to help patients with fibromyalgia in their own hospitals and surgeries. The outcome of the intensive meetings and data analysis is nine recommendation points for clinicians on the best way to manage fibromyalgia.

- Full understanding of fibromyalgia requires comprehensive assessment of pain, function and psychological context. Fibromyalgia should be recognised as a complex and heterogeneous condition where there is abnormal pain processing and other secondary features.
- Optimal treatment requires a multidisciplinary approach with a combination of non-pharmacological and pharmacological treatment modalities tailored according to pain intensity, function, associated features such as depression, fatigue and sleep disturbance in discussion with the patient.
- Heated pool treatment with or without exercise is effective in fibromyalgia.



- Individually tailored exercise programmes including aerobic exercise and strength training can be beneficial to some patients with fibromyalgia.
- Cognitive behavioural therapy may be of benefit to some patients with fibromyalgia.
- Other therapies such as relaxation, rehabilitation, physiotherapy and psychological support may be used depending on the needs of the individual patient.
- Tramadol is recommended for the management of pain in fibromyalgia. Simple analgesics such as paracetamol and other weak opioids can also be considered in the treatment of fibromyalgia. Corticosteroids and strong opioids are not recommended.
- Antidespressants: amitriptyline, fluoxetine, duloxetine, milnacipran, moclobemide and pirlindole reduce pain and often improve function therefore they should be considered for the treatment of fibromyalgia.
- Tropisetron, pramipexole and pregabalin reduce pain and should be considered for the treatment of fibromyalgia.

The symptoms of fibromyalgia can improve if the patient is taught the skills of self-management. To begin with listening to and believing in an individual's experience of pain, together with reassurance and education, can significantly reduce worry and anxiety, which in themselves can augment the experience of pain. Pain management courses, CBT and education about fibromyalgia all address unhelpful beliefs, behaviours and their adverse effects. In addition, they encourage the acquisition and application of a range of positive coping skills and strategies. It is important that any intervention is personalised to the individual and agreed with them, so that they can take an active role in the self-management of their condition.



Pharmacological management

Pharmacological management of Fibromyalgia in the UK often involves 'off-label' medications focused to the relief of discrete symptoms rather than treatment of the condition. A number of drug therapies have shown effectiveness in randomised clinical trials, leading to approval by the FDA of pregabalin, duloxetine and milnacipran for the treatment of Fibromyalgia in the USA. However, many patients find available medications either insufficient to control their symptoms or difficult to tolerate due to a high incidence of adverse effects. Thus, all medications should be reviewed at regular intervals to monitor their efficacy. Awareness by patients that some adverse effects may resolve in time can encourage continuation with treatment.

Evidence for the effectiveness of non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drugs (NSAIDs) is lacking and of opioids is contradictory. 17,18 Thus, management often involves the use of antidepressants and anticonvulsants. Low dose tricyclic antidepressants (TCAs), such as amitriptyline, are used commonly to reduce pain, and improve sleep and fatigue.¹⁷⁻¹⁹ However, tolerability and durability of TCAs is poor. Selective serotonin reuptake inhibitors (SSRIs) can improve the symptoms of pain, fatigue, and depression. Insomnia and restlessness can be caused therefore morning administration of SSRIs is recommended. Although better tolerated than TCAs, beneficial effects of SSRIs can be less reliable. Serotonin and noradrenaline re-uptake inhibitors (SNRIs), e.g. duloxetine and milnacipran, reduce pain, and improve physical function and quality of life.¹⁻³ The benefits due to any of the anti-depressants are independent of their effect on mood. The anticonvulsants pregabalin and gabapentin also reduce pain and improve sleep quality, fatigue and quality of life. 17-19 Alternatively tramadol, a centrally acting analgesic with SNRI properties, will reduce the pain or pramipexole, a dopamine agonist, can improve pain, fatigue, function and global well-being.¹⁷⁻¹⁹ Muscle relaxants, e.g. baclofen or tizanidine, can be helpful if muscle twitching or cramps accompany the pain.¹⁸ The general intolerance to medication will dictate the treatment used. Individualised programmes of treatment of combinations of pharmacological



and non-pharmacological may be more effective in managing symptoms and daily functioning than drug treatment alone.^{4,6,20,21}

Poor sleep quality is common in Fibromyalgia and hypnotics such as zolpidem improve sleep and fatigue, but do not modify pain.^{17,18} Benzodiazepines can be useful for initially re-establishing a sleep routine, but long-term use may have associated risks.

Irritable bowel syndrome is a common co-morbidity. Use of antispasmodics, e.g. mebeverine or alverine, may reduce the spasm of hypersensitive bowels. Intolerance to wheat and/or dairy products and excess fibre may exacerbate the symptoms. A well-balanced diet is required, especially if complicated by medications causing weight gain.

Symptoms of depression can arise from the fear and isolation of living with chronic pain. Coming to terms with living with Fibromyalgia and adopting changes in attitude and lifestyle is often sufficient to deal with depressive symptoms. It is important to tackle any co-existing factors that may be contributing to the depression. In persistent cases antidepressants can prove effective.¹⁷

Non-pharmacological management

Emotional and behavioural management

Psychosocial factors play an important part in fibromyalgia and its successful treatment. They can also act as predictors for the outcome of intervention. "Yellow flags" is the term used by Waddell et al for psychosocial factors suggesting a poor outcome to intervention. This is on account of their tendency to augment the experience of pain, establishing a cycle of increasing pain and distress. No individual factor can be used as a reliable predictor of poor outcome, but the following factors in combination tend to do so:

- Belief that pain is harmful or severely disabling
- Fear-avoidance behaviour (avoiding an activity through fear that it will cause pain)
- Emotions tendency to low mood, withdrawal from normal social interaction



 Expectations of receiving passive treatment rather than active participation in a treatment programme

CBT aimed at helping patients to understand their pain and to develop coping strategies, has been shown to be most effective. CBT differs from psychotherapy, in which the patient tends to be passive while the therapist "interprets" for the patient any underlying psychological blocks. In CBT, patient and therapist collaborate to understand the specific difficulties that the patient is experiencing, recognising unhelpful habits and behaviour and developing positive strategies for coping with the effects of fibromyalgia.

Body Conditioning and Exercise Management

Fibromyalgia can impact on individuals in many ways, resulting in reduced social, emotional and physical functioning. Physical changes, such as muscle weakness and stiffness, reduced fitness and activity levels can lead to a cycle of deconditioning. Getting your patient started with an exercise programme is a means to change this downward spiral of inactivity. Some people find that they do more exercise or activities on days when they feel good, and fewer or no activities on days when they feel bad. This is often referred to as "over activity and under activity cycling" and will be discussed more in the next section.

The Deconditioning Cycle





Exercise has many known benefits such as improving fitness, aerobic capacity, mood, muscle strength, stamina, suppleness, sleep, weight, body shape and appetite.^{21,22} Recent research has shown that exercise can activate parts of the brain which suppress pain.²² Indeed exercise has been shown to reduce pain in clinical trials but it is important to exercise regularly as this effect takes time to develop. If your patients are unaccustomed to doing exercise, it is usual to experience unpleasant bodily or pain sensations when they start. These sensations during or after exercise do not mean that they are causing any damage to their body and they may need some gentle encouragement to continue with their exercise despite this. It is often helpful to explain to patients that their pain may feel worse initially, but it should improve if they persist with exercise. In order to gradually increase their exercise and activity levels over time, a tolerance and baseline approach is most useful to encourage consistency and adherence irrespective of whether they are experiencing a "good" or "bad" day. Start with exercises that are manageable and suggest that they focus on the quality of their movement and how they are performing an exercise, rather than the quantity of what they are doing.

Example of a tolerance and baseline approach

EOD means to add one repetition every other day ED means to add one repetition every day.

Exercise	Day1 Tolerance	Day 2 Baseline	Day 3	Day 4	Day 5	Day 6	Day 7	Exercise Strategy
Stand up	6	3	3	4	4	5	5	+1 EOD*
Step up	9	4	5	6	7	8	9	+1 ED*

^{*}EOD *ED

Key principles of exercise management

- Exercise can reduce pain.
- Exercise is a means to increase daily activity levels and can involve any kind of activity from gardening to walking down the road.

- Encourage the individual to choose a type of exercise that reflects their interests, their physical goals or specific activities they wish to return to or increase.
- A tolerance and baseline approach is the best way to get someone starting to exercise gradually over time.
- Encourage the individual to be patient and to persevere with a flexible routine they can easily incorporate into their daily lifestyle.
- If they experience difficulty continuing to exercise on a bad day, remind them that they will need to modify their exercises in order to achieve their planned number for the day. For example, doing some stretches instead, exercising with a friend, breaking the exercises up over the day or starting with the easy ones first!

A physiotherapist, with an understanding of fibromyalgia, will be able to advise your patients how to select different types of exercises according to the training effect they choose to work on. This may be in relation to physical tasks that your patients are currently struggling to do or activities that they would like to do more. Encourage them to have a go and then they can choose which approach suits them best.

Activity scheduling, activity/rest cycling and goal setting

It is recognised (WHO²⁴) that occupation is a core human need that maintains health and well-being. Remaining active is an important ingredient for managing fibromyalgia. Over time, patients frequently report avoiding more and more activities that they associate with making their pain worse; or they may take this tack for a while, feel increasingly frustrated and when a "good day" comes along, they may play "catch-up" with all the activities they have put off. This way of trying to cope is understandable, common and has its own name, "activity cycling".²⁵

However, because fatigue and poor sleep are common adjuncts to fibromyalgia, it can be helpful to manage activity in a way that uses energy wisely. Prioritising, planning and pacing activity can make a significant impact on the amount people can do in the long term. Spreading activity out over the day or the week, rather than rushing to do everything at once, breaking



tasks down into manageable "chunks" and using stretches and relaxation skills during activity can all help. Patients may also need to use problemsolving skills to figure out new and creative ways of getting tasks done, within their own capabilities.

One of the barriers to continuing with activity can be the deconditioning that often occurs as muscles and joints fail to be used in the normal way because of pain. A graded exercise programme can help to gradually improve fitness, and encourage the use of the body through its full range of movements. Although aids and equipment can appear tempting, it is helpful to stress the importance of patients being able to use their own body to manage daily activity. This will raise self-esteem and guard against the stress and frustration of not coping independently. A decision about whether or not to use aids and equipment should be carefully made, and not rushed into because of the ease of a short-term solution.

If changes in activity management are to be made and sustained in the home, socially and at work, communication with family, friends and work colleagues will be important. Helping the patient to put their case for change, negotiate a way of balancing roles and responsibilities to maximise independence and working towards maximising the fun and social contact they have requires assertive communication. This is sometimes lost when pain and fatigue impact on self-confidence, but with practice can be regained and make a significant difference to enjoyment in life.

Patients sometimes find it difficult to make changes in established habits of "doing". Engaging them in a process of trying new things, and then reporting back the benefits or costs will be part of helping them to decide on the strategies they feel able to make a part of their life. It will need to be stressed that any benefit in increased activity may be slow to happen, but that pacing has been shown to have positive effects. However, these strategies are about helping each individual to get in touch with the core values in their lives, to set goals that will move them towards their core values, and to manage each day in a way that is meaningful and productive to them.²⁶ It will not necessarily reduce pain.

FMA UK has produced a booklet, Young People and Fibromyalgia which includes sections for the young people themselves, parents and teaching staff.



Adolescents and young people with fibromyalgia

Fibromyalgia in adolescents has a different outlook. Young people have growth and development on their side. Graded exercise is very important as it is with adults. Adapting, but continuing with age-appropriate activity such as school and social life is essential. It prevents young people getting "knocked off" their growing up path and also serves as a buffer to low mood and frustration by giving opportunities for fun. Chronic pain is a serious challenge for young people, but with support and playing a "smart game" the future can be very good.

Juvenile fibromyalgia can be confused with other disorders, e.g. "growing pains", joint hypermobility or psychological problems. However, there is one study suggesting a strong association between joint hypermobility and fibromyalgia in schoolchildren, with more girls affected than boys.²⁷

As with adults it is important to take a careful history and to acknowledge the child's experience and description of pain. Reassuring parents who may be fearful that their child has a crippling degenerative disorder and explaining how the condition can be successfully managed is also useful.

Alternative therapies

There is limited empirical research to substantiate the use of alternative therapies. However, more focused on-going research is beginning to recognise some physiological and emotional benefits of these interventions:

Osteopathy

Acupuncture

Massage therapy

Herbal remedies

Osteopathy

Osteopathy is a system of diagnosis and treatment of a wide range of conditions. The osteopath uses his/her knowledge of anatomy, physiology and pathology combined with an in-depth evaluation of the musculoskeletal system to assess the health of the patient.

Massage therapy

Massage encourages muscle relaxation, blood flow and lymph drainage. In particular, deep-stroking massage can be used to tackle trigger points resulting from the prolonged contraction of muscle sarcomeres within a taut



band of muscle. Some fibromyalgia patients will only be able to cope with a very light massage at first, needing to build up gradually.

Acupuncture

Acupuncture is commonly used for the treatment of pain and is believed to suppress hyperneural activity for short periods. There are no known side effects of this treatment, which could be beneficial to patients who are hypersensitive to pharmacological treatments.

Herbal remedies

Herbal medicine uses plant extracts for their healing properties. Popular herbs to treat fibromyalgia are ginkgo biloba, which can improve blood circulation, and valerian to help sleep and to calm nervous anxiety. Patients should appreciate that herbal remedies are medicines, which may interact adversely with prescribed medications.

Trigger points versus tender points

Tender points are the specific areas of tenderness used for the diagnosis of fibromyalgia. They produce a painful response when pressed upon, but do not refer pain to any other part of the body. Tender points usually occur in pairs so they are distributed equally on both sides of the body.

Trigger points are responsible for myofascial pain and can occur in an acute and chronic state. They are not specific to fibromyalgia, but often occur in conjunction and are magnified by pain amplification.

These highly irritable nodules of exquisite tenderness are located in a palpable taut band of muscle tissue and arise when over-stimulated sarcomeres become unable to release from their contracted state.

Trigger points always hurt when pressed upon and refer pain to other areas of the body in a predicted manner. For example, a trigger point in the sternocleidomastoid muscle refers pain to the front, top and back of the head and the jaw. Trigger points can be latent or active and can vary in irritability from day-to-day. They can cause muscle weakness and restricted range of motion as well as pain. It is important to identify symptoms that are caused by trigger points and to treat them accordingly.

A useful reference to identify the predictable patterns and treatment of trigger points is The Trigger Point Therapy Workbook by Clair Davies.



Fibromyalgia Association UK Tel: **0844 887 2444**Email: charity@fmauk.org www.fmauk.org Guidance for Health Professionals

References

- Expert Panel And Consensus Panel Myopain 1992. Consensus Document On Fibromyalgia: The Copenhagen Declaration. Musculoskeletal Pain, Myofascial Pain Syndrome, And The Fibromyalgia Syndrome. Edited By Jacobsen, Danneskiold-Samsoe & Lund. New York, Haworth Medical Press, 1992.
- 2. Prevalence Of Fibromyalgia: A Survey In Five European Countries (See Www.Fmauk.Org/Prevalence For Details)
- Goldenberg: Fibromyalgia Syndrome A Decade Later. Archives Of Internal Medicine 1999; 159: 777– 785.
- Carville Sf Et Al: EULAR Evidence-Based Recommendations For The Management Of Fibromyalgia Syndrome. Annals Of Rheumatic Diseases 2008 April; 67(4):536-41.
- Wolf Et Al: The American College Of Rheumatology 1990 Criteria For The Classification Of FMS. Arthritis & Rheumatism 1990; 33: 160–172.
- White Et Al: The London Fibromyalgia Epidemiology Study: Comparing The Demographic And Clinical Characteristics In 100 Random Community Cases Of Fibromyalgia Versus Controls. *Journal* Of Rheumatology 1999; 26: 1577–1585.
- 7. Bennett: Disabling Fibromyalgia: Appearance Versus Reality. *Journal Of Rheumatology 1993; 20:* 1821–1824.
- 8. Waddell Et Al: Occupational Health Guidelines For The Management Of Low Back Pain: An International Comparison. *Occupational Environmental Medicine 2003; 60: 618–626.*
- Marcus: Current Trends In Fibromyalgia Research. Expert Opinion In Pharmacotherapy 2003; 4: 1687–1695.
- Henriksson: Fibromyalgia From Syndrome To Disease. Overview Of Pathogenetic Mechanisms. *Journal Of Rehabilitation Medicine 2003*; 41 (Suppl): 89–94.
- Russell Et Al: Elevated CSF Levels Of Substance P In Patients With Fibromyalgia Syndrome. Arthritis & Rheumatism 1994; 37: 1593–1601.
- Russell Et Al: Increased Concentrations Of NGF In The CSF Of Patients With Fibromyalgia. Journal Of Rheumatology 1999; 26: 1564–1569.
- Lineberger Md, Means Mk, Edinger Jd. Sleep Disturbance In Fibromyalgia. Sleep Medicine Clinics, 2007, 2(1), 31-39
- Neeck & Riedel: Hormonal Perturbations In Fibromyalgia Syndrome. Annuals Of New York Academy Of Science 1999; 876: 325–338.
- Jean Eisinger Dysautonomia, Fibromyalgia And Reflex Dystrophy Arthritis Research And Therapy 2007
- 16. Bengtsson: The Muscle In Fibromyalgia. Rheumatology 2002; 41: 721–724.
- 17. Choy Eh (2009) Fibromyalgia Syndrome. Oxford University Press. ISBN: 978-0-19-954751-7
- 18. Lawson K (2008) Treatment Options And Patient Perspectives In The Management Of Fibromyalgia: Future Trends. *Neuropsych. Dis.Treat.*, 4(6):1-14.
- Mease P J Seymour K (2008) Fibromyalgia: Should The Treatment Paradigm Be Monotherapy Or Combination Pharmacotherapy? Curr Pain Headache Rep., 12(6):399-405.
- 20. Häuser W Et Al (2009) Guidelines On The Management Of Fibromyalgia Syndrome A Systematic Review. Eur J Pain. Mar 3.
- Huynh C N Et Al (2008) Fibromyalgia: Diagnosis And Management For The Primary Healthcare Provider. J Womens Health (Larchmt). 17(8):1379-87
- Gowans Et Al: Effect Of A Randomised Controlled Trial Of Exercise On Mood And Physical Function In Individuals With Fibromyalgia. Arthritis Care And Research 2001:45:519-529
- Hakkinen Et Al: Strength Training Induced Adaptations In Neuromuscular Function Of Premenopausal Women With Fibromyalgia: Comparison With Healthy Women. Annual For Rheumatic Diseases 2001; 60: 21–26.
- 24. Who 1986 The Ottowa Charter For Health Promotion, Ottowa, Canada.
- 25. Strong Et Al: Pain: A Textbook For Therapists 2002 Edition, Churchill Livingstone, Elsevier Science Ltd Publishers, London.
- 26. Jenifer Creek: Occupational Therapy: New Perspectives 1998 Edition, Whurr Publishers, London.
- Buskila Et Al: Joint Hypermobility And Fibromyalgia In Schoolchildren. Annual Rheumatology Dissertations 1993; 52: 494–496.



Resources & Contacts

Other free booklets in this series:

Information booklet for patients Information booklet for young people Display Materials A4 poster with common symptoms A5 flyer with symptoms and brief description

Fibromyalgia Association UK (FMA UK)

Unit 3007, Mile End, Abbeymill Business Centre, 12 Seedhill Road, Paisley, PA1 1JS

Tel: 01384 918 831

Helpline: 0844 887 2444 E-mail: charity@fmauk.org Website: www.fmauk.org

Useful websites

www.fmauk.org

The Fibromyalgia Association UK website which includes information for patients and professionals and a thriving supportive community forum.

www.evidence.nhs.uk

An evidence based information site for professionals overseen by NICE.

www.nhs.uk/conditions/Fibromyalgia/

The NHS Direct website. From this site, click on 'health encyclopaedia', followed by 'Alphabetical Index', choose letter 'F', then select fibromyalgia.

www.myalgia.com

The Oregon Fibromyalgia Foundation website, maintained by Dr Robert Bennett and his colleagues at Oregon Health Sciences University, USA.

The "International Myopain Society" (IMS) is an international, interdisciplinary medical organization interested in exchanging ideas, conducting research, or learning more about soft tissue pain.

www.mapofmedicine.com

This site gives an indepth care pathway for chronic widespread pain fibromyalgia.

This version is an interim reprint pending the review by EULAR of the guidelines for fibromyalgia.

Updates and errata to this document can be found at www.fmauk.org/mp2014review

Reference Books

A wide range of books are available from FMA UK for both professionals and patients, please see website www.fmauk.org/products



Disclaimer

To our knowledge the information contained in this document was accurate at the time of printing. Fibromyalgia Association UK cannot be held responsible for any omissions or incorrect use of the guidance given herein.

Written by the Medical Advisory Board of the Fibromyalgia Association UK.

Registered Charity Number: 1042582

Copyrighted © 2014 Fibromyalgia Association UK



Fibromyalgia Action UK Studio 3007, Mile End Mill 12 Seedhill Road, Paisley PA1 1JS

National Helpline: **0300 999 3333** (10am - 4pm weekdays) Benefits Helpline: **0300 999 0055** (10am - 12pm Monday & Friday)

Email: charity@fmauk.org
www.fmauk.org

Revision date: Jan 2015